
HERALDRY IN THE TEA ROOM 

 

In the Old Hall Room or ‘Tea Room’ at Tabley House, near Knutsford, Cheshire, is a profusion of 

heraldry relating to the Leycester (later Leicester) family who resided at Tabley for many centuries. The 

art work is mainly in the form of stained glass with the addition of a large, carved wooden mantelpiece. 

In addition to heraldic stained glass there are religious scenes and images of twenty-two kings and 

queens from William Rufus to George II (with some repeated). The stained glass is of various dates 

from the late-sixteenth century through to the nineteenth century. This paper explains something of the 

significance of the coats of arms to be seen in this tea room. 

The Old Hall Room was built in 1927 to provide a link between the Grade I listed Tabley House and 

the seventeenth century St Peter’s Chapel when it moved from its old situation in the parklands, on an 

island in the mere.  

 

THE MANTELPIECE 

The mantel is the dominant feature of the room. Dated 1619, it shows the impaled arms that celebrates 

the marriage of Peter Leycester to Elizabeth, daughter of Randle Mainwaring from nearby Peover, in 

1611: the arms of Leycester being the four quarters to the left and Mainwaring to the right. Above 

each set of quarterings are the respective family crests: the blood splattered swan’s head for Leycester 

and the white ass’s head within a coronet for Mainwaring. 

The arms may be blazoned as: Quarterly of four – 1 and 4. Azure, a fess Gules between three fleur-de-

lis Or; 2. Azure, a garb Or [Grosvenor]; 3. Sable, a cross patonce Argent [Eton which ought to be 

Quarterly Argent and Sable, a cross patonce counterchanged]; impaling quarterly of four – 1. Barry 

of twelve Argent and Gules [Mainwaring]; 2.  Azure, three garbs Or [Randle Blundeville, Earl of 

Chester]; 3. Sable, a wyvern Or [Warmingham or Moston]; 4. Gules, a scythe Argent [Praers]. There 

is strangeness in the arms of Mainwaring. Normally their coat is Argent, two bars Gules, but an 

Elizabethan herald ascribed ‘barry of twelve, Argent and Gules’ and these were registered in the 

Visitation of Cheshire in 1613, yet what is shown both here and in the window is Argent, five bars 

Gules, this latter probably being a genuine error of the artist. The inclusion of the arms of the earl of 

Chester among the Mainwaring quarters was not without controversy being based on an unproven 

marriage back in the early thirteenth century. 

The iconography of the mantel is difficult to interpret, but there are allusions to pleasure, death, the 

passage of time, chastity, honour, innocence and wisdom. Either side of the rectangular heraldic 

panel, are terms depicting Adam and Eve and beyond them, in niches, images of Lucrece (Lucretia) 

holding a dagger, and Cleopatra, with the two asps at her breast. Both these ladies from the Classical 

era committed suicide by the means indicated rather than face dishonour. The frieze along the base 

depicts a deer hunting scene. Above, between a merman and a mermaid, a female nude rests on a skull 

and holds a winged hourglass. An owl and a dove are perched on the top corners. 

The couple, Peter and Elizabeth Leycester, were the parents of Sir Peter Leicester (1613-1678), the 

first baronet, who was prolific in his antiquarian writings. He studied at Brazenose College, Oxford, 

and Greys Inn, specialising in Latin, Old English, Norman French and Greek. He married in 1642, the 

first year of the Civil War, during which he was at one time a prisoner in Oxford and then in 1655/6 a 



prisoner at Chester. At the Restoration in 1660 he was created a Baronet and he subsequently became 

a Deputy Lieutenant and JP for Cheshire. His book on the history of Cheshire Leicester's Historical 

Antiquities was published in 1673 and dedicated to Charles II.  

 

 

THE WINDOWS 

The windows of the Tea Room are on the west and south walls. The west window consists of six 

lights each of which contains many small rectangle panes with the armorial designs set upon 

cartouches within an oval pane, there are also a few biblical scenes. Along the south wall there is a 

range of five windows but not all contain heraldry. It should be noted that there are two or three styles 

of armorial painting among the windows suggesting both different times and different artists. 

The top left-hand light of the west window has the arms of Leycester (Azure, a fess Gules between 

three fleur-de-lis Or) impaling Praers (Argent, a scythe Sable) with a legend recording that William 

Leycester, son and heir of John, married Anne, daughter to Richard Sneyd in 1508 but died without 

issue. Beneath this, bottom left, are the arms of the Leycester family with badge of a baronet in fess 

point. 

The middle top light has a rectangle with the quartered arms of Leycester and Grosvenor (Azure, a 

garb Or) with helm, swan’s head crest, mantling and the motto: ‘Tu Domine Gloria Mea’. Thomas 

Leycester married Margery, or Margaret, one of the daughters and heirs of Robert Grosvenor of 

nearby Hulme in 1464. Around the achievement is a border through which runs the trunk of a tree, 

beginning bottom left and proceeding clockwise. Along its length there are fourteen escutcheons each 

bearing the Leycester arms impaled with the wife of successive generations – an heraldic family tree. 

The families of Dutton (Quarterly, Argent and Gules, in 2nd and 3rd a fret Or), Mobberley (Argent, 

two chevronels Gules on a canton of the second a cross-crosslet fitchy Or), Mascy of Rixton 
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(Quarterly, Gules and Argent in second a mullet Sable), Legh (Or, a lion rampant Sable), Grosvenor, 

Henshaw (Argent, a chevron between three moorhens Sable), Holford (Argent, a greyhound passant 

Sable), Shakerley (Argent a chevron between three turves Vert), and Mainwaring (Argent, six bars 

Gules) are represented. 

Bottom middle are the arms of Byrne: Gules, a chevron between three hands within a border Argent, 

badge of baronetcy in chief. This represents the marriage, in 1728, of Sir John Byrne of Timogue, 

Ireland, to Meriel, daughter and heir to Sir Francis Leycester, the third baronet, who died in 1742. Her 

son Peter inherited the Tabley estates and, in accordance with instructions in his grand-father’s will, 

took the arms and name of Leicester becoming Sir Peter Byrne Leicester: it was he who 

commissioned the building of the present Palladian style mansion. 

Top right can be seen Leycester quartering Byrne with badge of baronetcy in fess point, surmounted 

by a coronet and labelled ‘De Tabley’. Finally, in this window, the arms of Warren (Checky Or and 

Azure, on a canton Gules a lion rampant Argent). George Fleming Leicester (1811-1887), the eldest 

son of John Leicester, 1st Baron de Tabley (1762-1827), and a godson of George IV, assumed in 

1832, the surname and arms of Warren in lieu of Leicester under the terms of the will of his 

kinswoman Elizabeth Warren-Bulkeley (née Warren), Viscountess Bulkeley. 

In the second window on the south wall are the arms of Colwich (Argent, a fess between three 

leopards heads Sable). The arms are set within against a cartouche within a diamond pane. Peter 

Leycester married Elizabeth, daughter and heir of Edward Colwich of Colwich, Staffordshire in 1554. 

This is followed, in the third window, by Birkenhead (Sable, three garbs Argent, a border of the 

second pelletty, debruised by a bendlet Gules), set within against a cartouche within a diamond pane. 

Margaret, daughter of Peter Leycester, who married Richard Birkenhead of Manley Recorder of 

Chester in the 1520s.  He was the illegitimate son of John Birkenhead of Crowton and hence the 

bendlet sinister. 

Below is a rectangle with the quartered arms of Leycester and Grosvenor with mantling and the 

motto: ‘Tu Domine Gloria Mea’. 

Next, we find the arms of Danvers of Wiltshire (Argent, on a bend Gules three martlets Or, badge of 

baronetcy in dexter chief). This commemorates the marriage of Meriel (died 1701, aged 29 years) 

daughter of Sir Robert Leycester, to John Danvers of Culworth, Northamptonshire, baronet. 

Interestingly the arms are actually those of Danvers of Wiltshire not Northamptonshire which ought to 

be Gules, a chevron between three mullets Or. 

 

THE CHAPEL 

In the neighbouring chapel there is a further profusion of heraldry. 

One of the north window has three lights. In the top left are the ancient royal arms of France 

quartering England surrounded by a wreath. Beneath are several escutcheons within diamond 

quarries: Grosvenor (Azure, a garb Or); Dutton (Quarterly, Argent and Gules, in 2nd and 3rd a fret 

Or); Wilson of Kendal (Argent, three wolves heads couped Sable, gutty de sang); unidentified (Sable, 

a lion rampant Or and in chief three estoiles of the second); Watson (Or, on a chief Vert three 

martlets of the first) for the marriage, in 1667, of Robert Leycester (Sir Peter’s son) to Meriel Watson 



of Newport, Shropshire; Venables (Azure, two bars Argent); and Leycester of Toft (Azure, a fess 

Gules fretty Or, between three fleur-de-lis Or) Sir Peter’s daughter Elinor married Ralph Leycester.  

In the lower section are the arms of Warren (Checky Or and Azure, on a canton Gules a lion rampant 

Argent) within a wreath above smaller images of Mainwaring (Argent, two bars Gules) for the 

marriage of Peter and Elizabeth Mainwaring, though here the usual Mainwaring arms are used; Fesant 

(Azure, three pheasants Or); Montefelant? (Gules, six fleur-de-lis Or, three, two and one); Shakerley 

(Argent a chevron between three turves Vert); Gerard (Argent, a saltire Gules, in fess point a crescent 

Or), for Sir Peter’s marriage to Elizabeth daughter of Gilbert, lord Gerard; Parnell (Gules, two 

chevrons Argent , a bend Sable); Toft (Argent, three text Ts, Sable); Mascy (Quarterly, Gules and 

Argent in second a mullet Sable). 

Top centre is the full achievement of Byrne-Leicester with a horse and a swan as supporters, swan’s 

head crest and motto. In the lower section Stapleton (Argent, a lion rampant Sable) and Booth 

(Argent, three boarôs heads erased and erect Sable). 

The top right has the arms of Leicester with the badge of baronetcy in a wreath, above those of 

Thornhill (Gules, two bars gemells and a chief Argent); Mobberley (Argent, two chevrons Gules on a 

canton of the second a cross-crosslet fitchy Or); Crewe (Azure, a lion rampant Argent), Venables of 

Horton and Agden (Azure, two bars Argent, a mullet Gules for difference) for the marriage of Sir 

Peter’s daughter Biron to John Brereton of Agden; Tochet (Ermine, a chevron Gules); Holford 

(Argent, a greyhound passant Sable); Leycester; and finally Birch (Azure, three fleur-de-lis Argent, a 

canton of the second) in recognition of Sir Peter’s daughter Elizabeth marrying Samuel Birch of 

Whitborn, Herefordshire in 1666.  

In the lower right the arms of Byrne in a wreath with Fletcher (Sable, a cross engrailed Argent 

between four plates each charged with a pheon of the first), Brereton of Ashley (Sable, two bars 

Argent, a mullet Sable in fess point and a crescent Gules for difference), Praers (Argent, a scythe 

Sable), Henshaw (Argent, a chevron between three moorhens Sable), Leigh (Argent, a lion rampant 

Sable), Fitton (Argent, a canton Gules, over all on a bend Azure three garbs Or), Parker (Vert, a 

chevron between three stags heads cabossed Or), Fleming (Gules, a fret Argent). 

On the south side of the chapel are windows with the arms of Warren quartering Leycester of Tabley 

and Leycester of Toft quartered, with Davenport (Argent, three crosses crosslet fitchee Sable) in 

pretence all within a wreath under a pavilion canopy, all held aloft by an angel. Also another display 

showing Warren quartering Leycester of Tabley and Leycester of Toft quartered surmounted by three 

crests: a green wyvern’s head?; A swan's head and neck erased Argent gutty de sang for Leycester; 

and A wyvern Argent the wings elevated checky Azure and Or, standing on a cap of maintenance 

Gules, turned Ermine for Warren. The whole display is held aloft by angels. 

  



 

 

 

 

 

 

The south window of the Tea Room, with enlarged central panel 

Details from windows in west range 



 

The window on the north side of the chapel 

The windows on the south side of the chapel 


